2008

American Fork City v. Karl G. Peterson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

Statement of the Issues

Appellant asserts the following issues on appeal:

Issue 1:

- a. The American Fork City Municipal ordinances at Chapter 8.08 *Nuisance Abatement and Beautification Ordinance* is unenforceable. It does not comply with the requirements of Utah Code Annotated §10-9a-515 (1) which trumps or preempts it.
- b. Determinative Law: §UCA 10-9a-515 (1)
- c. Standard of Review: de novo. Statutory Interpretation (*Sill v Hart*, 2005 UT 537 ¶¶7), Public Policy Implications (*State v Levin*, 2006 UT 50 ¶¶ 20-24, 29 - 31)

Issue 2:

- a. The Motion to Set Aside the Judgment should have been granted.
- b. Determinative Law: Utah State Constitution, Section 7; Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 16, 5b
- c. Standard of Review: de novo. Statutory Interpretation (*Sill v Hart*, 2005 UT 537 ¶¶7), Public Policy Implications (*State v Levin*, 2006 UT 50 ¶¶ 20-24, 29 - 31)

Determinative Constitutional provisions, statutes, ordinances and rules

47 C.F.R. Part 97

101 FCC 2nd 952 (1985) PRB-1

Utah Code Annotated §10-9a-515 Regulation of amateur radio antennas.

Utah State Constitution, Section 7

Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 16

Statement of the Case

a. Nature of the Case

¶1 Defendant has stored, in his back yard, empty containers which have value to him and with which he plans to construct an amateur radio tower to support an antenna and perhaps wind generation rotors for the production of electrical power.(Response, lines 46-48) The back yard is completely surrounded by privacy fencing with no gaps greater than 2 inches between fence sections and buildings and less than 2 inches below any gate or fence section. All gates are kept closed and latched. American Fork City brought suit against the defendant citing violation of 08.080 *Nuisance Abatement and Beautification Ordinance*, but chose to shorten the name to 08.080.030 *Beautification Ordinance* before the Trial Court when the real title for the section 08.080.030 which they cite is *Prohibited Conduct--Definition of Nuisance*.

b. Course of proceedings

¶2 American Fork City brought suit against the defendant for violation of Chapter

8.08 *Nuisance Abatement and Beautification Ordinance* and more specifically 8.08.030 *Prohibited conduct --Definition of nuisance*. The Pretrial Hearing was aborted due to defendant filing a Motions for Dismissal. After the defendant had been excused, the prosecutor chased him down and showed defendant photos that could only have been taken by entry into the backyard of the property. A request for copies of those photos was verbally made by the defendant. At a subsequent hearing, the trial judge denied both Motions for Dismissal. Defendant attempted to file an appeal with the trial court after that hearing, but the clerk of the court refused to accept it and told defendant that he would have to wait until after the trial concluded. No further hearings were held prior to trial. Specifically a complete pretrial hearing was not held. No communications were had between the City and the defendant prior to the trial. Specifically no photos, witness lists or other discovery documents were supplied to the defendant. Trial was held in the absence of the defendant. Defendant was made aware that he had been tried in absentia when a letter arrived at his residence notifying him that he needed to appear for Sentencing. This notice arrived the day before the Sentencing Hearing. Prior to the Sentencing Hearing, defendant filed a Motion to Set Aside the Judgment. At the Sentencing hearing, defendant's Motion to Set Aside the Judgment was denied by the judge, then sentence and an order were issued. Defendant filed an appeal following sentencing.

c. disposition at trial court

¶3 Defendant was found guilty of violation of Am. Fork 8.08.030 *Beautification Ordinance*, fined \$1000 suspended and jail of 180 days suspended, order to clean and secure a Certificate of Clean Bill of Health from Environmental Quality within 60 days.

Relevant Facts with citation to the record

¶4 Defendant filed a Motions for Dismissal with a First Motion for Dismissal and a Second Motion for Dismissal. (transcript, page 3, lines 14,15) (Motions for Dismissal, Response to Memorandum in Opposition...)

Trial Judge tells defendant to make arguments for both Motions for Dismissal.

(transcript, page 3, lines 14 - 18)

Defendant made arguments about the enforceability of the ordinance citing trumping State Law. (transcript, page 5, lines 5 - 18)

Prosecutor says "I don't even know where he's coming from with that" (transcript, page 6, lines 12-13)

Trial Judge denies second cause for dismissal. (transcript, page 8 line 1)

Prosecutor interprets the statute for the Judge incorrectly. (transcript, page 6, lines 7-13)

Trial Judge says "Not before this Court" (transcript; page 6, line 16; p8, lines 1 - 3)

Defendant Filed a Motion To Set Aside The Judgment which was denied. (Trial Court case notes 12/17/2008, p51)

Summary of Argument 1

¶5 This issue is being tried de novo, so Appellant will attempt to make all arguments that have been made in pleadings and in oral argument before the Trial Court for the benefit of the Appeals Court.

¶6 The Federal Communications Commission(FCC), issued PRB-1 in 1985. Utah enacted §10-9a-515 in 2005. American Fork City purchased from the West Company, Inc. a body of statutes for a City. This body of ordinances does not comply with §10-9a-515 and is thereby rendered unenforceable by §10-9a-515 which trumps or preempts it. The issue was placed before the court both in pleadings and oral argument. The Trial court erred in interpreting this statute and the case should have been dismissed and never gone to trial.

Detail of Argument 1

¶7 Appellant holds an FCC Extra Class Amateur Radio licensee, the highest license class attainable, with call sign WB7PZA and station location at 70 West 400 North, American Fork, Utah as issued by the FCC. Defendant is also a member of Civil Air Patrol (CAP) and the Radio Amateur Emergency Service (RACES).

¶8 Amateur Radio Operators, commonly referred to as Ham Radio Operators or Hams, play a critical role in disaster communications. With little or no help from any level of government, they equip themselves with stations consisting of transceivers attached to antennas supported by towers or other structures that enable them to have

worldwide communications capabilities both to send and receive messages in good times and in times of disaster when there is no power. Many times the first reports out of a disaster area are from Ham operators in the middle of the disaster who have equipped their stations with emergency power generation systems and are using makeshift antennas if their permanent antennas have been damaged. In the event that the signal from the sending station is weak, a receiving station needs a good antenna system in order to solidly pass messages to and from the disaster area. The higher above ground an antenna is, the better it will perform. Due to the danger of airplanes running into tall towers, the Federal Communications Commission (hereinafter abbreviated as FCC) has regulated Ham radio antennas and towers for many years.

¶9 In recent years, Ham Radio operators who put up antennas and towers, not near airports, have been the target of harassment from governmental entities using zoning ordinances, revocation of permits, exorbitant fees, nuisance, health and beautification ordinances and other tactics. This became such a problem for amateur radio operators in the 1980's that the FCC stepped in at the request of the Amateur Radio Relay League (ARRL), an Amateur Radio national advocacy group. After public comment, the FCC issued what has come to be known as PRB-1. It is formally cited as Amateur Radio Preemption, 101 FCC 2nd 952 (1985), and has been codified at 47 C.F.R. Part 97. The FCC ruled that local governments must grant "reasonable accommodations" to Ham radio operators in the erection of antennas and their associated towers and other structures and

also that the regulations needed to be the minimum practicable regulation to accomplish their legitimate purposes. The reasonableness of the accommodations would be from the viewpoint of view of the Commission and not that of the local government. PRB-1 gives any licensed individual who wishes to put up an antenna or tower recourse if he is hassled in putting it up. This is because the Federal preemption trumps or preempts any state or local law. In like manner, a state law trumps or preempts any local ordinance.

¶10 Utah has Statutes which mandate compliance with PRB-1 at the county and local levels. The State Statute for local governments, which defendant cited to the court, (transcript, page 5, lines 5 - 18) is:

§10-9a-515. Regulation of amateur radio antennas.

(1) A municipality may not enact or enforce an ordinance that does not comply with the ruling of the Federal Communications Commission in "Amateur Radio Preemption, 101 FCC 2nd 952 (1985)" or a regulation related to amateur radio service adopted under 47 C.F.R. Part 97.

(2) If a municipality adopts an ordinance involving the placement, screening, or height of an amateur radio antenna based on health, safety, or aesthetic conditions, the ordinance shall:

- (a) reasonably accommodate amateur radio communications; and
- (b) represent the minimal practicable regulation to accomplish the municipality's

purpose.

¶11 The language of this statute makes it effective for all citizens, not just Hams. It applies even if there is no antenna evident, contemplated or applied for since the verbiage of the statute does not mention antennas. The Trial court erred in ruling that §10-9a-515 does not apply if there is no antenna. (transcript, page 8, lines 8-10) In section (1), this statute requires on its face that a ordinance must comply with PRB1 or it may not be enforced. In section (2) aesthetic conditions are mentioned. The court erred in ruling that Beautification has nothing to do with antennas (transcript, page 7, lines 3 - 5) since aesthetics are in the verbiage of the law.

¶12 The prosecutor misled the Trial Court when he feigned misunderstanding of where the defendant was coming from. Both the prosecutor and the court had defendants Response to Memorandum in Opposition... which lays out the argument. (Response to Memorandum..., lines 35 - 44) By feigning misunderstanding, the prosecutor was successful in getting the Judge to state that the matter was not before the court when it had been a central theme in all the pleadings prior to the hearing.

Further discussion of Argument 1

¶13 §10-9a-515 is an extension of the Federal preemption in PRB-1. The phrase “*an ordinance*” could be interpreted broadly or narrowly. If interpreted broadly, the entire body of the ordinances of a Utah municipality are rendered unenforceable if they do not

comply with the provisions of PRB-1 as of the date that this Statute was enacted. If interpreted narrowly, only ordinances such as those enumerated in section (2) and in PRB-1 would be effected. These would include, but not be limited to, Zoning, Nuisance, Health, Safety and Beautification. Exactly the ordinances that the defendant is accused of violating.

¶14 For purposes of this appeal, Appellant chooses to adopt the narrow interpretation. He does this since he was charged and prosecuted under 8.08 *Nuisance Abatement and Beautification Ordinance*. Antennas and towers have been declared nuisances or eyesores in many localities and so are clearly covered under PRB-1. American City Ordinance 08.080 does not comply with PRB-1 and therefore cannot be enforced. The trial court erred in denying defendant's second Cause for Dismissal in his Motions for Dismissal. (transcript, page 8 line 1)

¶15 Next comes a question of what would it mean to comply or how an ordinance could comply. The word "comply" is not found in Black's Law Dictionary, Eighth Edition. If we look to (2) of §10-9a-515 we can see what compliance might look like. It enumerates two conditions which must be addressed before an ordinance can be enacted and enforced. They are reasonable accommodations and minimal practicable regulation towards Amateur Radio Communications.

¶16 8.08. *Nuisance Abatement and Beautification Ordinance* meets the narrow test as being the type of ordinance that could affect amateur radio communications under the

second paragraph of §10-9a-515 and so it must comply with PRB-1 if it is to be enforced. There is nothing about reasonable accommodations or minimal practicable regulation to be found in the ordinance. In like manner, Appellant asserts that every other other ordinance of American Fork City will be found lacking. Appellant asks the Appeals court to clarify the standards by which §10-9a-515 is to be applied to the ordinances of a municipality, and also to those of a county, so that a clear public policy can be defined.

¶17 The West Company Inc. sold this package of municipal ordinances to cities throughout the State of Utah. There are probably other municipalities that will have their ordinances rendered unenforceable because of §10-9a-515. This constitutes a major public policy issue. If the ordinances of American Fork became unenforceable as of the 2005 enactment date of §10-9a-515, there are going to be a lot of traffic citations that will have to be vacated and refunded. For that reason, Appellant asks that the opinion of the Appeals Court be published so that any city with nonconforming ordinances may be properly notified.

Summary of Argument 2

¶18 Due to the lack of a proper Pretrial Hearing and the failure of the Prosecutor to provide defendant with required discovery documents prior to trial, the defendant's right to due process was denied.

Detail of Argument 2

¶19 The Pretrial Hearing shown on the Trial Court case notes was truncated by the

Judge when the defendant said he had filed Motions for Dismissal. During the Motions for Dismissal Hearing, the Judge did not give the defendant any opportunity to ask for a pretrial hearing and set the matter for a hearing after having told the defendant to sit down and wait a minute. (transcript, page 8, line 6 and 13). This effectively made the conversation between the Judge and Prosecutor a private conversation. Defendant expected to receive witness lists and other requested documentation well before a Trial as required of the Prosecution in the Rules of Criminal Procedure. No disclosures of any kind were made to the defense other than through the Information at arraignment. The complaining officer did not testify, but some other official did. There is also mention of an Elizabeth Batty of whom the defendant has no knowledge, especially knowledge that should have come to him from the prosecution on a List of Possible Witnesses. None of the required discovery materials or information were disclosed to the defendant prior to the trial, even though Rule 16 in section 5b says that all information will be made available before a defendant is required to plead, and that it is then a continuing duty. The Prosecution failed in this continuing duty. This lack of due process caused the defendant to let the matter slip from his mind and miss the hearing. The Court should have granted defendant's Motion to Set Aside the Judgment when this breach of the Rules of Procedure was brought to his attention in the Motion, and should have set the matter for Pretrial Conference or a new trial.

Conclusion

¶20 Appellant has had his privacy invaded under color of law, been denied due process, had motions denied that should have been granted if the law had been applied correctly, been prosecuted and convicted under ordinances that are unenforceable by the letter of trumping State law. The trial court erred by not dismissing the case when presented with that law and hearing arguments relevant to it. The trial court also erred by not granting defendant's Motion to Set Aside The Judgment when it was presented to the court.

Relief Sought

¶21 Appellant asks the Appeals Court to vacate the judgment and order, rule that American Fork City's 8.08.030 *Nuisance Abatement and Beautification Ordinance* ordinance is unenforceable, rule that all other ordinances that could be used to affect his ability to construct a tower from the raw materials in his backyard are unenforceable. He asks the Appeals Court to Dismiss with prejudice the case against him. Appellant asks for an order that American Fork City be barred from charging or prosecuting him under any effected ordinance once it is brought into compliance with PRB-1, but rather grandfather his uses of the property and materials stored on his property under the new ordinances. Appellant asks that the Appeals Court put forth a standard for interpretation for application to §10-9a-515 and §17-27a-514. He also asks the Appeals Court to censure the Prosecuting Attorney for his lack of providing required documents to

defendant prior to trial. Appellant asks for any other relief that the Court of Appeals might see fit to grant him.