2008

American Fork City v. Karl G. Peterson : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction over this appeal pursuant to Utah Code Annotated § 78A-4-103. This section gives the Court of Appeals jurisdiction over appeals from a court of record in criminal cases, except those involving a conviction of a first degree or capital felony. The issue at hand comes within this category. District Court Judge Maetani found Defendant guilty on December 12, 2008.

DETERMINATIVE PROVISIONS

American Fork Code 8.08.030 Nuisance Abatement and Beautification

Utah Code Ann. § 78A-4-103

Utah Code Ann. §10-9a-515

Rule 16, Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure

Rule 30, Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure

Rule 24, Utah rules of Appellate Procedure

Amateur Radio Preemption, 101 FCC 2d 952 (1985) PRB-1

State v. Martin, 1999 UT 72, ¶ 8, 984 P.2d 975 (Utah 1999)

State v. Jarrell, 608 P.2d 218, 224 (Utah 1980), citing U.S. v. Agurs, 427 U.S. 97, 107.

State v. Martin, 2002 UT 34, ¶ 28, 44 P.3d 805 (Utah 2002)

Utah v. Hassan, 2004 UT 99, ¶ 10, 108 P.3d 695 (Utah 2004)

State v. Green, 2005 UT 9, ¶ 12, 108 P.3d 710 (Utah 2005)

Koulis v. Standard Oil Co., 746 P.2d 1182, 1185 (Utah Ct. App. 1987)

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS

1. Defendant/Appellant (hereafter referred to as “Peterson”) was charged with allowing unlawful waste upon the premises. an infraction, in American Fork City on or between January 17, 2008 and March 26, 2008. (R. 0001).
2. On June 16, 2008 Peterson filed a Motion for Dismissal. The basis for his Motion was that the American Fork City ordinance he was charged under should be unenforceable due to it not providing for reasonable accommodations for amateur radio towers. (R. 0016).
3. Judge Maetani denied Peterson’s Motion, ruling that Peterson was charged with a beautification violation and it had nothing to do with an antenna. (R. 0060, p. 7).
4. Judge Maetani concluded by stating that “[t]he antenna issue is not before the court.” He proceeded to dismiss Peterson Motion to Dismiss. (R. 0060, p. 8).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

No harmful error was made by the trial court in its careful and deliberate handling of the proceedings against Peterson for violation of American Fork City’s beautification ordinance. The trial court obtained jurisdiction over Peterson when he committed the crime within the court’s jurisdiction. Peterson’s constitutional rights were maintained during the entire process, from arraignment to discovery to sentencing, under the

prescribed processes of law. Appellant's Brief contains burdensome, emotional, immaterial, inaccurate and inadequate arguments and should therefore, be disregarded. Peterson has failed to show how any perceived error made by the trial court would have altered the outcome of his conviction.

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY RULED WHEN IT FOUND APPELLANT GUILTY OF AN AMERICAN FORK CITY BEAUTIFICATION ORDINANCE.

The trial court properly ruled when it found Appellant guilty of an American Fork City beautification ordinance (8.08.030). In American Fork City it is a violation, which may be prosecuted criminally, to participate in conduct that amounts to a nuisance. It is a nuisance to "allow the accumulation or growth of noxious weeds, garbage, refuse, or any unsightly or deleterious objects, conditions, or structures" on ones property which would "create a fire hazard, a source of contamination or pollution of water, air or property, a danger to health, a breeding ground or habitation for insects or rodents or other forms of life deleterious to human habitation, or when such objects, conditions, or structures are unsightly or deleterious to their surroundings." *American Fork Code 8.08.030 Nuisance Abatement and Beautification,*

Furthermore, it is unlawful for a property owner in American Fork City, Utah, "to park, store or leave...any licensed or unlicensed motor vehicle...which is in a wrecked

junked, partially dismantled, inoperative or abandoned condition...upon such property” for more than seventy-two hours. *Id.* Additionally it is unlawful for a property owner in American Fork City, Utah, “to cause or permit junk, scrap metal, scrap lumber...discarded building materials...or other waste materials to be in or upon any such property.” *Id.* In the present matter, the American Fork City enforcement officer discovered in or upon Appellant’s real property a number of items prohibited by the ordinance.

Appellant argues that U.C.A. §10-9a-515 trumps or preempts the American Fork City Ordinance. *See Appellant Brief* ¶ 6. However, U.C.A. §10-9a-515 deals only with the regulation of amateur radio antennas, which is not an issue in this case. (R. 0060, p. 8). Defendant essentially is saying that if he is a licensed radio operator, he may disregard the law with impunity. Such a position is without basis in the law and is against public policy. This court will review the trial court’s conclusions of law for correctness. The trial court ruled that antennas did not apply to the ordinance in question and that Appellant violated said ordinance.

II. APPELLANT’S DUE PROCESS RIGHTS WERE NOT DENIED HIM BECAUSE HE FAILED TO REQUEST ANY DISCLOSURES AND THE ISSUE WAS NOT PRESERVED FOR APPEAL.

Appellant argues that his due process rights were violated by the prosecution because discoverable information was not disclosed to Appellant pursuant to Utah Rule

of Criminal Procedure 16. The Utah Supreme Court opined that “[r]ule 16(a) only requires the prosecutor to ‘disclose [evidence] to the defense upon **request.**’ Utah R. Crim. P. 16(a). Due process, on the other hand, requires that certain evidence be disclosed even without a request.” *State v. Martin*, 1999 UT 72, ¶ 8, 984 P.2d 975 (Utah 1999) (Emphasis Added).

Both the United States Supreme Court and the Utah Supreme Court have held that a prosecutor does not have a duty to disclose all information in its possession, only that evidence that is clearly exculpatory. More specifically, the Utah Supreme Court stated that “a prosecutor has a constitutional duty to volunteer obviously exculpatory evidence and evidence that is ‘so clearly supportive of a claim of innocence that it gives the prosecution notice of a duty to produce.’” *State v. Jarrell*, 608 P.2d 218, 224 (Utah 1980), citing *U.S. v. Agurs*, 427 U.S. 97, 107.

In the present matter, Appellant failed to request any discoverable information from the prosecution, which relieved the prosecution from disclosing any evidence that was not exculpatory. The prosecution did not have in its possession any evidence that supported a claim of innocence and thereby had no duty to disclose without a specific request from Defendant.

Furthermore, Appellant did not preserve this issue for appeal. A defendant wanting to raise an issue on appeal must first raise it in the trial court. In *Martin*, the

court stated that because defendant “never raised this argument below...he thus waived his right to urge its consideration on appeal.” (On appeal Defendant sought to raise an issue that had not been raised in the trial court) *State v. Martin*, 2002 UT 34, ¶ 28, 44 P.3d 805 (Utah 2002). Throughout the entire process, Appellant’s due process was respected. In no way were his substantial rights prejudiced in any way.

III. APPELLANT’S BRIEF SHOULD BE DISREGARDED PURSUANT TO RULE 24(K) OF THE RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE.

Appellant’s Brief contains burdensome, emotional, immaterial, inaccurate and inadequate arguments. The Court of Appeals may disregard a Brief that is filled with burdensome, emotional, immaterial and inaccurate arguments. *See Koulis v. Standard Oil Co.*, 746 P.2d 1182, 1185 (Utah Ct. App. 1987); *see also* Rule 24(k) of the Rules of Appellate Procedure. It is difficult to know what Appellant is arguing in his “Argument 1.” *See* Appellant Brief p. 10-15. To the best of Appellee’s reading of the Appellant brief, Appellant references several laws (*Appellant’s Brief*, p. 10-11) that are not applicable in this case and endeavors to correlate them and apply them to a state statute (*Appellant’s Brief*, p. 12) which regulates amateur radio antennas.

Appellant goes on to state that any ordinance of the city which does not comply with PRB-1¹ is unenforceable (*Appellant’s Brief*, p. 13-14). Appellant then goes so far as to ask this Court to create a clear public policy in applying U.C.A. §10-9a-515 (deals

¹ PRB-1, cited as "Amateur Radio Preemption, 101 FCC2d 952 (1985)," is a limited preemption of local zoning ordinances. It delineates rules for local municipalities to follow in regulating antenna structures.

only with the regulation of amateur radio antennas) to the American Fork City Beautification ordinance (*Appellant's Brief*, p. 15). Appellant then randomly states that if all of the ordinances of American Fork City become unenforceable due to U.C.A. §10-9a-515 then the city will have to vacate and refund all traffic citations from 2005 to date. As stated in *Green* a brief that contains “a disjointed array of facts” is inadequate. *State v. Green*, 2005 UT 9, ¶ 12, 108 P.3d 710 (Utah 2005). For these reasons this Court should disregard Appellant’s brief.

IV. APPELLANT’S BRIEF FAILS TO SHOW ANY HARMFUL ERROR.

Appellant’s Brief fails to state how the trial court committed reversible error. The Utah Supreme Court has stated, “[W]e will overturn the trial court's rulings only if we find that (i) an error exists; (ii) the error should have been obvious to the trial court; and (iii) the error is harmful, i.e., absent the error, there is a reasonable likelihood of a more favorable outcome for [defendant].” *Utah v. Hassan*, 2004 UT 99, ¶ 10, 108 P.3d 695 (*Utah 2004*) (internal citations omitted). Appellant’s claims fail to meet the standard of “harmful” error. Rule 30 of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure states, “Any error, defect, irregularity or variance which does not affect the substantial rights of a party shall be disregarded.” Utah R. Crim. P. 30. Nothing in Appellant’s Brief puts in question the trial court’s conviction of Appellant for violation of the beautification ordinance. The trial court duly received evidence at trial, carefully considered the evidence and